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CONFIDENTIAL 

Subject to the Nondisclosure Provisions of H. Res. 895 of the 110th Congress as Amended 

OFFICE OF CONGRESSIONAL ETHICS 

UNITED STATES HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

REPORT 

Review No. 22-8546 

The Board of the Office of Congressional Ethics (hereafter “the Board”), by a vote of no less 

than four members, on June 17, 2022, adopted the following report and ordered it to be 

transmitted to the Committee on Ethics of the United States House of Representatives (hereafter 

“the Committee”). 

SUBJECT:  Rep. Alexandria Ocasio-Cortez    

NATURE OF THE ALLEGED VIOLATION:   Representative Alexandria Ocasio-Cortez may 

have accepted impermissible gifts associated with her attendance at the Met Gala in 2021.  If 

Rep. Ocasio-Cortez accepted impermissible gifts, then she may have violated House rules, 

standards of conduct, and federal law. 

RECOMMENDATION:  The Board recommends that the Committee further review the above 

allegation concerning Rep. Ocasio-Cortez because there is substantial reason to believe that she 

accepted impermissible gifts associated with her attendance at the Met Gala in 2021. 

VOTES IN THE AFFIRMATIVE: 5 

VOTES IN THE NEGATIVE: 0 

ABSTENTIONS: 0 

MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR STAFF DESIGNATED TO PRESENT THIS REPORT TO 

THE COMMITTEE: Omar S. Ashmawy, Staff Director & Chief Counsel.   
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OFFICE OF CONGRESSIONAL ETHICS 

UNITED STATES HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CITATIONS TO LAW 

Review No. 22-8546 

On June 17, 2022, the Board of the Office of Congressional Ethics (hereafter “the Board”) 

adopted the following findings of fact and accompanying citations to law, regulations, rules and 

standards of conduct (in italics).  The Board notes that these findings do not constitute a 

determination of whether or not a violation actually occurred. 

I. INTRODUCTION 

A. Summary of Allegations 

1. Representative Alexandria Ocasio-Cortez may have accepted impermissible gifts associated 

with her attendance at the Met Gala in 2021.  If Rep. Ocasio-Cortez accepted impermissible 

gifts, then she may have violated House rules, standards of conduct, and federal law. 

2. The Board recommends that the Committee on Ethics of the United States House of 

Representatives (“Committee”) further review the above allegation concerning Rep. Ocasio-

Cortez because there is substantial reason to believe that she accepted impermissible gifts 

associated with her attendance at the Met Gala in 2021. 

B. Jurisdictional Statement 

3. The allegations that were the subject of this review concern Rep. Ocasio-Cortez, a Member 

of the United States House of Representatives from the Fourteenth District of New York.  

The Resolution the United States House of Representatives adopted creating the Office of 

Congressional Ethics (“OCE”) directs that, “[n]o review shall be undertaken … by the 

[B]oard of any alleged violation that occurred before the date of adoption of this resolution.”1  

The House adopted this Resolution on March 11, 2008.  Because the conduct under review 

occurred after March 11, 2008, review by the Board is in accordance with the Resolution. 

C. Procedural History 

4. The OCE received a written request for a preliminary review in this matter signed by at least 

two members of the Board on February 18, 2022.  The preliminary review commenced on 

February 19, 2022.2 

5. On March 1, 2022, the OCE notified Rep. Ocasio-Cortez of the initiation of the preliminary 

review, provided her with a statement of the nature of the review, notified her of her right to 

 
1 H. Res. 895 of the 110th Congress § 1(e) (2008) (as amended) (hereafter the “Resolution”). 
2 A preliminary review is “requested” in writing by members of the Board of the OCE.  The request for a 

preliminary review is received by the OCE on a date certain.  According to the Resolution, the timeframe for 

conducting a preliminary review is 30 days from the date of receipt of the Board’s request. 
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be represented by counsel in this matter, and notified her that invoking her right to counsel 

would not be held negatively against her.3  

6. At least three members of the Board voted to initiate a second-phase review in this matter on 

March 18, 2022.  The second-phase review commenced on March 21, 2022.4  The second-

phase review was scheduled to end on May 4, 2022. 

7. On March 21, 2022, the OCE notified Rep. Ocasio-Cortez of the initiation of the second-

phase review in this matter, and again notified her of her right to be represented by counsel in 

this matter, and that invoking that right would not be held negatively against her.5    

8. The Board voted to extend the second-phase review by an additional period of fourteen days 

on April 19, 2022.  The additional period ended on May 18, 2022.    

9. The Board voted to refer the matter to the Committee for further review and adopted these 

findings on June 17, 2022. 

10. The report and its findings in this matter were transmitted to the Committee on June 23, 

2022. 

D. Summary of Investigative Activity 

11. The OCE requested documentary and in some cases testimonial information from the 

following sources: 

(1) Rep. Ocasio-Cortez; 

(2) Campaign Staffer; 

(3) Aurora James;  

(4) Brother Vellies;  

(5) Janna Pea;  

(6) Mejuri, Inc.; 

(7) The Metropolitan Museum of Art;  

(8) Advance Magazine Publishers, Inc., d/b/a Condé Nast; 

(9) Met Gala Organizer; and 

(10) Stylist 1. 

 
3 Letter from Omar S. Ashmawy, Chief Counsel and Staff Dir., Office of Cong. Ethics, to Rep. Ocasio-Cortez (Feb. 

22, 2022).  Since the review commenced on Saturday February 19, 2022 and because February 21, 2022 was a 

federal holiday, the OCE initially contacted Rep. Ocasio-Cortez’s staff on the morning of Tuesday, February 22, 

2022.  See Emails between Indhira Benitez, Investigative Counsel, Office of Cong. Ethics, and Gerardo Bonilla 

Chavez, Chief of Staff to Rep. Ocasio-Cortez (Feb. 22, 2002 - Mar. 1, 2022).  In that initial communication, the 

OCE noted that it had a confidential communication for Rep. Ocasio-Cortez and sought the opportunity to speak to 

her directly regarding the matter.  Id.  Despite several follow up communications to her Chief of Staff during the 

week of February 22, 2022, the OCE was not provided with an opportunity to speak with Rep. Ocasio-Cortez.  

Accordingly, the OCE hand-delivered notice of the review to Rep. Ocasio-Cortez’s office on March 1, 2022.  Id. 
4 According to the Resolution, the Board must vote (as opposed to make a written authorization) on whether to 

conduct a second-phase review in a matter before the expiration of the 30-day preliminary review.  If the Board 

votes for a second phase, the second phase commences the day after the preliminary review ends.   
5 Letter from Omar S. Ashmawy, Chief Counsel and Staff Dir., Office of Cong. Ethics, to Rep. Ocasio-Cortez (Mar. 

21, 2022).   
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12. The following individuals and entities refused to cooperate with the OCE’s review: 

 

(1) Aurora James; 

(2) Brother Vellies; and  

(3) Janna Pea. 

 

II. REP. OCASIO-CORTEZ MAY HAVE ACCEPTED IMPERMISSIBLE GIFTS  

A. Applicable Law, Rules, and Standards of Conduct 

13. Federal Statutes 

 

Under 5 U.S.C. § 7353(a), “no Member of Congress . . . shall solicit or accept anything of value 

from a person— (1) seeking official action from, doing business with, or (in the case of executive 

branch officers and employees) conducting activities regulated by, the individual’s employing 

entity; or (2) whose interests may be substantially affected by the performance or 

nonperformance of the individual’s official duties.”6 

 

14. House Rules 

 

House Rule XXIII, clause 4 states that “[a] Member, Delegate, Resident Commissioner, officer, 

or employee of the House may not accept gifts except as provided by clause 5 of Rule XXV.”7 

Under House Rule XXV, clause 5 “the term ‘gift’ means a gratuity, favor, discount, 

entertainment, hospitality, loan, forbearance, or other item having monetary value.  The term 

includes gifts of services, training, transportation, lodging, and meals, whether provided in kind, 

by purchase of a ticket, payment in advance, or reimbursement after the expense has been 

incurred.” 

House Rule XXV, clause 5(a)(1)(A) states: “(i) A Member . . . of the House may not knowingly 

accept a gift except as provided in this clause. (ii) A Member . . . of the House may not knowingly 

accept a gift from a registered lobbyist or agent of a foreign principal or from a private entity 

 
6 In In the Matter of Rep. Charles B. Rangel, 111th Cong., 2nd Sess. (Nov. 29, 2010) at 114, the Committee outlined 

what constitutes solicitation or acceptance under 5 U.S.C. § 7353, emphasizing that the prohibition has three 

components: “(1) a solicitation or acceptance; (2) of anything of value; (3) from a person seeking official action 

from the House or whose interests may be substantially affected by the performance or nonperformance of the 

individual’s official duties.”  With respect to the third prong, the Committee emphasized its breadth by explaining: 

“the relevant inquiry is whether the person solicited had an interest in affecting the legislative process. In some 

instances, that will be reflected by lobbying on particular pieces of legislation. In other instances, there might be a 

request for a Member to intervene with a government agency. But it also includes recognizing the fact that most 

entities, including multi-national corporations and large foundations, will always have some interest in matters 

within the ambit of Congress. The performance or nonperformance of a Member’s official duties can affect the 

interests of those entities, and that effect can be substantial.”  Id. at 117.            
7 While House Rule 25 outlines the House’s gift rules, as discussed more fully below, the Committee released online 

gift rule guidance that provides details and examples on how House Rule 25 should be interpreted.  See infra.  

Accordingly, the OCE primarily references the Gift Guidance below.      
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that retains or employs registered lobbyists or agents of a foreign principal except as provided in 

subparagraph (3) of this paragraph.”  

Pursuant to Rule XXV, clause 5(a)(3): “The restrictions of [House Rule XXV, clause 5(a)(1)] do 

not apply to the following . . . (Q) free attendance at an event permitted under [House Rule XXV, 

clause 5(a)(4)].”   

Pursuant to House Rule XXV, clause 5(a)(4)(C): “A Member . . . of the House, or the spouse or 

dependent thereof, may accept a sponsor’s unsolicited offer of free attendance at a charity event, 

except that reimbursement for transportation and lodging may not be accepted in connection 

with the event unless— (i) all of the net proceeds of the event are for the benefit of an 

organization described in section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and exempt 

from taxation under section 501(a) of such Code; (ii) reimbursement for the transportation and 

lodging in connection with the event is paid by such organization; and (iii) the offer of free 

attendance at the event is made by such organization.” 

15. House Gift Guidance8 and Committee Precedent   

 

Consistent with House Rules, the Committee’s Gift Guidance defines a gift in a broad manner: 

“[a] gift is something with monetary value for which you do not have to pay.”9   

 

Regarding valuation of gifts, the Committee’s Gift Guidance indicates that “[t]angible gifts are 

generally valued at the item’s fair market value, even if the item is not typically for sale.  Fair 

market value is the item’s retail price, not the wholesale price, or the reasonable estimate of an 

item’s cost if it were available for sale.”10  

 

The House Gift Guidance explains that, “[t]he Gift Rule starts with the premise that you may not 

accept a gift unless it meets an exception to the Gift Rule.”11  The Gift Guidance outlines several 

permissible gift exceptions, including an exception for charitable events.   

 

Under the charitable events exception, “[y]ou may accept an unsolicited offer of free attendance 

for a charity fundraising event for you and a spouse or dependent child. ‘Free attendance’ 

includes all or part of the cost of admission; local transportation to and from the event; and the 

food, refreshments, entertainment, and instructional materials provided to all event 

 
8 In a December 31, 2020 Press Release, the Committee announced that it “ha[d] been working to update … the 

Travel and Gifts sections of the Ethics Manual” and that updated travel and gifts guidance provided by the 

Committee online now “supersede[s] the corresponding chapters in the 2008 House Ethics Manual.”  Press Release, 

House Committee on Ethics, Statement of the Chairman and Ranking Member of the Committee on Ethics 

Regarding Modernization of the Committee’s Website, Ethics Manual Updates, Revised Travel Regulations, and 

Revised Foreign Gifts and Decorations Act Regulations (Dec. 31, 2020).  Accordingly, the OCE draws relevant gift 

rule guidance from the superseding materials provided by the Committee online at https://ethics.house.gov/house-

ethics-manual/gifts.  
9 Gift Guidance, House Ethics Committee, https://ethics.house.gov/house-ethics-manual/gifts (“House Gift 

Guidance”) (citing House Rule XXV).  The guidance goes on to explain that “[g]ifts include gratuities, favors, 

discounts, entertainment, hospitality, loans, forbearances, services, training, travel expenses, in-kind contributions, 

advanced payments, and reimbursements after the fact.”  Id.   
10 House Gift Guidance. 
11 Id. 
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attendees.  Free attendance does not include entertainment collateral to the event or food and 

refreshments outside the group setting of the event, such as giveaways.”12 

“A charity fundraising event must meet the following criteria. 

• You are invited by the event organizer directly, and 

o The event organizer is the organization(s) doing the work to put the event on, not 

a monetary event sponsor or table sponsor.  

• The event’s primary purpose must be to raise funds to benefit an organization qualified 

under § 170(c) of the Internal Revenue Code.  

o The primary purpose is usually met if at least half of the proceeds are tax-

deductible charitable contributions.”13 

House Gift Guidance elaborates on the meaning of event organizers and sponsors, explaining in 

a footnote that “‘[e]vent organizer’ and ‘event sponsor,’ as those terms relate to events, mean 

‘the person, entity, or entities that are primarily responsible for organizing the event.  …  

[T]here may be more than one event organizer if those entities ‘play[] significant, active role[s] 

in organizing the event in a manner that is roughly comparable’ to another event organizer or 

sponsor.”14 

B. Background on the Met Gala and Rep. Ocasio-Cortez’s Attendance  

16. The Metropolitan Museum of Art (“the Met”) hosts an annual Costume Institute Benefit 

(commonly known as the “Met Gala”) in order to raise funds the museum’s Costume 

Institute.15  The Costume Institute is a collection of “more than thirty-three thousand objects 

represent[ing] seven centuries of fashionable dress and accessories for men, women, and 

children, from the fifteenth century to the present.”16  The Met Gala “provides The Costume 

Institute with its primary source of annual funding for exhibitions, publications, acquisitions, 

operations, and capital improvements.”17     

17. Condé Nast, which identifies itself as “a global media company that produces some of the 

world’s leading print, digital, video and social brands,” including Vogue,18 “partners with the 

[Met] in the organization and execution of the [annual Met Gala].”19  Anna Wintour, who is 

the Global Chief Content Officer for Condé Nast, Global Editorial Director of Vogue,20 a 

 
12 Id. (footnotes omitted).   
13 Id. (footnotes omitted).   
14 Id.     
15 See e.g., 2021 Met Gala Announcement (Exhibit 1 at 22-8546_0002).   
16 The Met, The Costume Institute, https://www.metmuseum.org/about-the-met/collection-areas/the-

costume%20institute#:~:text=The%20Costume%20Institute's%20collection%20of,fifteenth%20century%20to%20t

he%20present (last visited June 7, 2022).   
17 2021 Met Gala Announcement (Exhibit 1 at 22-8546_0002).   
18 Condé Nast, About, https://www.condenast.com/about (last visited June 7, 2022). 
19 Condé Nast Declaration Regarding Met Gala Activities (Exhibit 2 at 22-8546_0007). 
20 Press Release, Condé Nast, Condé Nast unveils new global content strategy (Dec. 15, 2020). 
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Met Trustee,21 and a Chair of the annual Met Gala,22 is meaningfully involved with Met Gala 

planning and invitations.         

18. Rep. Ocasio-Cortez was invited to the Met Gala in 2019, 2020, and 2021.  She could not 

attend in 2019 and the 2020 Met Gala was cancelled due to the COVID-19 pandemic; 

however, Rep. Ocasio-Cortez attended the Met Gala in 2021 along with her partner, Riley 

Roberts.  As discussed more fully below, Rep. Ocasio-Cortez received a series of goods and 

services which she did not pay for until the OCE opened this review.       

C. Rep. Ocasio-Cortez’s Attendance at the 2021 Met Gala   

19. In 2021, Rep. Ocasio-Cortez was invited to and attended the Met Gala with Mr. Roberts.  As 

part of her attendance, Rep. Ocasio-Cortez was provided with a couture dress, handbag, 

shoes, and jewelry.  She also received hair, makeup, transportation, and ready-room services.  

Riley Roberts received a bowtie and shoes in advance of the event.     

20. While Rep. Ocasio-Cortez appears to have now paid for the rental value of the attire she 

wore to the Met Gala and for the goods and services she and her partner received in 

connection with this September 2021 event, payment for these goods and services did not 

occur until after the OCE contacted her in connection with this review.  But for the OCE 

opening this review, it appears that Rep. Ocasio-Cortez may not have paid for several 

thousands of dollars’ worth of goods and services provided to her.    

i. Rep. Ocasio-Cortez’s Preparation for and Attendance at the 2021 Met Gala  

21. On April 12, 2021, the Met announced that its 2021 Met Gala would be held on September 

13, 2021.23  Rep. Ocasio-Cortez received an invitation to the Met Gala in a May 13, 2021 

email to Campaign Staffer.24  Specifically, the email said:   

Dear Representative Alexandria Ocasio-Cortez:   

I am writing about the 2021 [Met Gala], which I am delighted to say 

will be back this year to celebrate the new exhibition and the 75th 

anniversary of The Costume Institute.  . . .  To celebrate … we are 

planning to hold a slightly smaller [Met Gala] on Monday, September 

13, 2021.  . . .  Anna [Wintour] would be thrilled to have you and 

 
21 See e.g., Press Release, The Met, Anna Wintour Becomes an Elective Trustee of The Metropolitan Museum of Art 

(May 10, 2011); The Met, Board of Trustees (as of Nov. 2018), https://www.metmuseum.org/-/media/files/about-

the-met/annual-reports/2017-2018/annual-report-2017-18-the-board-of-trustees.pdf (identifying Anna Wintour as an 

Elective Trustee).   
22 See e.g., Press Release, The Met, Costume Institute’s Spring 2019 Exhibition to Focus on Camp in Fashion (Oct. 

9, 2018) (identifying Anna Wintour as a chair of the 2019 Met Gala); Press Release, The Met, Costume Institute To-

Part Exhibition to Focus on American Fashion (Sept. 7, 2021) (identifying Anna Wintour as a chair of the 2021 Met 

Gala).   
23 2021 Met Gala Announcement (Exhibit 1 at 22-8546_0002).   
24 Rep. Ocasio-Cortez 2021 Met Gala Invitation from Vogue (Exhibit 3 at 22-8546_0009-13). 
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Riley Roberts join us at the [Met Gala] this September, as guests of 

Vogue.”25  

22. On June 24, 2021, Rep. Ocasio-Cortez, through Campaign Staffer, accepted the invitation to 

attend the Met Gala.26  Campaign Staffer was told to expect a “celebratory digital invitation” 

in “the coming weeks.”27  On August 5, 2021, Campaign Staffer received that celebratory 

digital invite in the form of an email from the Met (events@metmuseum.org).28    

23. It is customary for fashion designers attending the Met Gala to dress Gala attendees.  

Accordingly, shortly after she accepted the invitation to the Met Gala, Vogue connected Rep. 

Ocasio-Cortez with Aurora James, the creative director and founder of the fashion brand 

Brother Vellies, who had agreed to dress Rep. Ocasio-Cortez in connection with the 2021 

Met Gala.29  Aurora James worked with Rep. Ocasio-Cortez and her team between July 2021 

and the date of the Met Gala to design Rep. Ocasio-Cortez’s attire.      

24. Rep. Ocasio-Cortez told the OCE that given the nature and visibility of the Met Gala, she 

retained counsel to ensure she and her team complied with all ethics rules.30  Campaign 

Staffer echoed these same sentiments, noting that counsel was hired in advance of this “non-

traditional” event to ensure that all Met Gala decisions were made in accordance with 

applicable ethics requirements.31  Campaign Staffer explained that she worked with counsel 

and Rep. Ocasio-Cortez to address compliance-related concerns involving attendance, attire, 

transportation, and other issues that arose in connection with the event.32  Documents 

produced by Rep. Ocasio-Cortez evidence her team working through some of these 

compliance related-concerns in advance of the Met Gala.33 

25. Rep. Ocasio-Cortez told the OCE that a determination was made, in advance of the Met Gala 

and in conjunction with her team and counsel, that she would be personally paying for the 

attire and services she received in connection with the Met Gala (as opposed to paying with 

campaign or official funds).34   

26. On September 13, 2021, Rep. Ocasio-Cortez attended the Met Gala with her partner.  She 

also took part in a Vogue video which documented her getting ready for the event.35  Rep. 

 
25 Id. (Exhibit 3 at 22-8546_0009) (emphasis in original).   
26 Rep. Ocasio-Cortez 2021 Met Gala Invitation Acceptance Email Chain (Exhibit 4 at 22-8546_0015).   
27 Id. 
28 Rep. Ocasio-Cortez 2021 Met Gala Invitation from the Met (Exhibit 5 at 22-8546_0019-20).   
29 Aurora James Introduction Email Chain (Exhibit 6 at 22-8546_0023-24).   
30 Rep. Ocasio-Cortez Transcript (Exhibit 7 at 22-8546_0038-39).  Rep. Ocasio-Cortez told the OCE that it is 

common practice for her to have her counsel vet events that might warrant extra scrutiny.  Id.   
31 Campaign Staffer Transcript (Exhibit 8 at 22-8546_0092-98, 0101-02).   
32 Id. 
33 See e.g., Rep. Ocasio-Cortez’s Counsel’s Emails Regarding Attendance Concerns (Exhibit 9 at 22-8546_0192-

99); Campaign Staffer and Aurora James Text Messages (Aug. 2021 – Mar. 2022) (Exhibit 10 at 22-8546_0211, 

0217-18, 0237).   
34 Rep. Ocasio-Cortez Transcript (Exhibit 7 at 22-8546_0040-42, 0045-46)).   
35 Video: Congresswoman Alexandria Ocasio-Cortez Gets Ready for the Met Gala, Vogue (Sept. 16, 2021), 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Y4yq726SUpE (last visited June 7, 2022).    

mailto:events@metmuseum.org
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Ocasio-Cortez received the following rental goods and services in connection with the video 

and her Met Gala attendance:    

a. Transportation from her home to Carlyle Hotel; 

b. Access to a ready room at the Carlyle Hotel on the day of the Gala (and also the 

Saturday before the Met Gala for dress fitting purposes);  

c. Hair and makeup services;   

d. A dress, handbag, shoes, and jewelry from Brother Vellies; and  

e. Transportation to the Met Gala from the Carlyle Hotel.36   

      

27. Brother Vellies also provided Riley Roberts with a pair of shoes and a bowtie.37     

28. The day after the Met Gala, Rep. Ocasio-Cortez received significant press coverage 

regarding her attendance and attire, and much of the coverage focused on the extent to which 

her attendance and attire were permissible under House ethics rules.38  In wake of this press, 

the Committee’s Director of Advice and Education contacted Rep. Ocasio-Cortez’s staff 

regarding her attendance at the Met Gala.39  Ultimately, on September 16, 2021, the 

Committee’s Staff Director & Chief Counsel emailed with Rep. Ocasio-Cortez’s counsel 

about her attendance.40   

29. The Committee’s Staff Director & Chief Counsel noted that the Director of Advice and 

Education initially contacted Rep. Ocasio-Cortez’s staff “not because the Ethics Committee 

had any questions.”41  Instead, the Committee’s contact had been “common, compliance-

related outreach” designed to “proactively check[] if your client had any questions for us 

about the ethics rules and how they apply to events like the Met Gala. This is something we 

commonly do, particularly when there has been a high profile matter and we don’t have a 

record of the office seeking the Committee’s guidance on the issues involved.”42  The 

Committee’s Staff Director & Chief Counsel went on to explain that the goal of the outreach 

“was a brief, informal phone call” in which they could address any questions Rep. Ocasio-

Cortez’s staff might have about her attendance, including whether she could accept a free 

ticket for herself and a guest, whether she could receive a custom gown for the event, and 

how to address gifts that may have been accepted in contravention of House rules.43 

30. The Committee’s Staff Director & Chief Counsel concluded his email to counsel by 

explaining that any phone call would be “entirely voluntary and meant in the spirit of 

proactive customer service.  If we can be of help with regard to these questions (or any 

others), please let us know.  Often with these kinds of things phone calls are quicker and 

 
36 Rep. Ocasio-Cortez Transcript (Exhibit 7 at 22-8546_0042-45); Campaign Staffer Transcript (Exhibit 8 at 22-

8546_0115-126). 
37 See infra, Section II.C.ii. 
38 The OCE considered whether Rep. Ocasio-Cortez and her partner’s attendance were permissible under House 

ethics rules.  See infra, note 46.       
39 Email Chain with House Ethics Regarding Met Gala Attendance (Exhibit 11 at 22-8546_0242-46).   
40 Id.   
41 Id. 
42 Id. 
43 Id. 
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easier (and where outside counsel is involved, cheaper for the client).  However, if you prefer 

to correspond in writing, that would be fine.”44  

31. Rep. Ocasio Cortez’s counsel responded to this email in writing by outlining the reasons why 

he believed her attendance and receipt of certain services were permissible under House 

rules:45   

 

32. As evidenced above, Rep. Ocasio-Cortez’s counsel emphasized that: 1) he believed her and 

her partner’s attendance qualified as a permissible exception to the House gift rules – 

specifically the exception that permits attendance at charity events; and 2) Rep. Ocasio-

 
44 Id. 
45 Id. 
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Cortez would be personally paying for the attire and services she was provided.46, 47  Rep. 

Ocasio-Cortez told the OCE that she was aware that her counsel was communicating with the 

Committee on these issues in or around this time.48   

ii. Rep. Ocasio-Cortez’s Payment for Met Gala Services  

33. Rep. Ocasio-Cortez told the OCE that while she would pay for the above-described services 

with her personal funds, Campaign Staffer was tasked with making the actual payments.49  

As discussed in more detail below, while the services identified above have been paid for as 

of the date of this report, Rep. Ocasio-Cortez neglected to pay for these services until after 

the OCE opened this review.50  Thus, despite various efforts to address compliance concerns 

in advance of the Met Gala through counsel,51 and despite representations to the Committee 

 
46 Id.  The OCE considered whether Rep. Ocasio-Cortez and her partner’s attendance was permissible under House 

Rules.  The OCE found significant documentary evidence suggesting that Rep. Ocasio-Cortez’s invitation is most 

appropriately characterized as an invitation from Vogue.  See e.g., Rep. Ocasio-Cortez 2021 Met Gala Invitation 

from Vogue (Exhibit 3 at 22-8546_0009) (“Anna would be thrilled to have you and Riley Roberts join us at the [Met 

Gala] this September, as guests of Vogue”); Rep. Ocasio-Cortez 2021 Met Gala Invitation Acceptance Email Chain 

(Exhibit 4 at 22-8546_0015-16) (indicating that Rep. Ocasio-Cortez accepted the invitation from Vogue); August 2, 

2021 Email Regarding Important Information for 2021 Met Gala (Exhibit 12 at 22-8546_0248) (noting that Rep. 

Ocasio-Cortez’s RSVP was already noted prior to her receiving the celebratory digital invitation from the Met).  

While Rep. Ocasio-Cortez’s counsel attempted to confirm that her invitation came directly from the Met, see Rep. 

Ocasio-Cortez’s Counsel’s Email Exchanges Regarding Attendance Concerns (Exhibit 9 at 22-8546_0198), and 

while Rep. Ocasio-Cortez did receive an email invitation from a Met email address, see Rep. Ocasio-Cortez 2021 

Met Gala Invitation from the Met (Exhibit 5 at 22-8546_0019), the other documents identified above suggest that 

Vogue was the original source of the invitation.  Additionally, the OCE reviewed numerous communications from 

the day after the Met Gala that related to press inquiries about her attendance.  These documents also indicate that 

Vogue was the source of the invitation and suggest that there was some attempt to obfuscate Vogue’s role in the 

invitation process.  See e.g., Sept. 14, 2021 Email Chain 1 Regarding Press Inquiries (Exhibit 13 at 22-8546_0251); 

Sept. 14, 2021 Email Chain 2 Regarding Press Inquiries (Exhibit 14 at 22-8546_0254-61); Sept. 14, 2021 Email 3 

Regarding Press Inquiries (Exhibit 15 at 22-8546_0263).  The OCE determined that, even if Vogue was the source 

of the invitation (and not the Met), Rep. Ocasio-Cortez’s attendance would still be permissible under House Rule 

XXV, clauses 5(a)(3)(Q) and 5(a)(4)(C).  Vogue is appropriately characterized as an event organizer given the 

significant and active role it plays in organizing the Met Gala.  See supra, Section II.A. (outlining the charity events 

exception and defining an event organizer); see also Condé Nast Declaration Regarding Met Gala Activities (Exhibit 

2 at 22-8546_0007).  Additionally, the Met is a 501(c)(3) organization qualified under Sec. 170 of the tax code, and 

the primary purpose of the Met Gala is to raise funds for the Costume Institute.  See e.g., Met 2020 IRS Form 990 

(designating the Met as a 501(c)(3); see also Rep. Ocasio-Cortez’s Counsel’s Email Exchanges Regarding 

Attendance Concerns (Exhibit 9 at 22-8546_0198).     
47 In response to Rep. Ocasio-Cortez’s counsel’s email detailing why he believed her and her partner’s attendance 

was permissible under House Rules, Committee Staff Director & Chief Counsel noted that only spouses and 

dependent children qualified as permissible guests under the charitable events exception to the gift rule.  Email 

Chain with House Ethics Regarding Met Gala Attendance (Exhibit 11 at 22-8546_0168).  Consistent with prior 

decisions, the OCE Board opted to treat a long-term significant other as synonymous with a spouse.    
48 Rep. Ocasio-Cortez Transcript (Exhibit 7 at 22-8546_0047).   
49 Id. (Exhibit 7 at 22-8546_0048).   
50 Rep. Ocasio-Cortez produced various documents to the OCE evidencing payment for the services she received in 

connection with the Met Gala.  The payments were made on a series on American Express cards during the course 

of this review.  While the OCE could not determine the ultimate source of the funds used to pay for these services, 

Rep. Ocasio-Cortez and Campaign Staffer each told the OCE that the services had been or would be paid from Rep. 

Ocasio-Cortez’s personal funds.  Rep. Ocasio-Cortez Transcript (Exhibit 7 at 22-8546_0053-59); Campaign Staffer 

Transcript (Exhibit 8 at 22-8546_0155-59, 0168-69, 0173, 0180, 0184-86).      
51 See supra, Section II.C.i. 
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regarding compliance with House rules,52 it appears several thousands of dollars’ worth of 

services may have remained unpaid absent the OCE initiating this review.  Below the OCE 

identifies these goods and services provided to Rep. Ocasio-Cortez and the details regarding 

when and how payment was made:   

a. Hair Services  

34. Rep. Ocasio-Cortez had her hair done by Stylist 1 on September 13, 2021 in preparation for 

the Met Gala.53  This hair service was arranged for and coordinated by employees at Condé 

Nast in connection with the Vogue video.54   

35. On September 21, 2021, Condé Nast advised the agency representing Stylist 1 – Streeters – 

that billing would be handled by Campaign Staffer, and copied Campaign Staffer on that 

email.55  On September 30, 2021, Streeters provided Campaign Staffer with a $477.73 bill for 

services.56  

36. Between September 30, 2021 and February 24, 2022, the bill for hair services went unpaid.  

During this time, Streeters’ accounts receivable department made repeated attempts to secure 

payment, culminating in a February 23, 2022 email threating to “file a complaint with [New 

York City’s Office of Labor Policy and Standards for Workers] against Alexandria Ocasio-

Cortez for Congress if payment is not deposited before end of business tomorrow.”57 

37. On February 24, 2022, two days after the OCE first contacted Rep. Ocasio-Cortez’s staff 

about this review, Campaign Staffer paid for Rep. Ocasio-Cortez’s hair styling services.58   

38. When interviewed, Campaign Staffer did not provide the OCE with a clear explanation for 

these payment delays, aside from acknowledging that it “fell off [her] radar” and she often 

received emails from Streeters at times when she could not focus on their payment requests.59  

Campaign Staffer told the OCE that Rep. Ocasio-Cortez would periodically follow-up with 

her about needing to pay for these hairstyling services, but that Rep. Ocasio-Cortez was not 

aware at the time of the company’s escalating payment demands.60   

b. Makeup Services  

39. Rep. Ocasio-Cortez had her makeup done by Stylist 2 on September 13, 2021 in preparation 

for the Met Gala.61  This hair service was arranged for and coordinated by employees at 

Condé Nast in connection with the Vogue video.62     

 
52 See supra, Section II.C.i. 
53 Rep. Ocasio-Cortez Transcript (Exhibit 7 at 22-8546_0042-43).   
54 Campaign Staffer Transcript (Exhibit 8 at 22-8546_0119-20). 
55 Hairstyling Billing Emails 1 (Exhibit 16 at 22-8546_0266-67).   
56 Id. (Exhibit 16 at 22-8546_0265-68). 
57 Hairstyling Billing Emails 2 (Exhibit 17 at 22-8546_0271-86). 
58 Hairstyling Payment Confirmation (Exhibit 18 at 22-8546_0288-94). 
59 Campaign Staffer Transcript (Exhibit 8 at 22-8546_0162-65). 
60 Id. (Exhibit 8 at 22-8546_0165-66). 
61 Rep. Ocasio-Cortez Transcript (Exhibit 7 at 22-8546_0042-43).   
62 Campaign Staffer Transcript (Exhibit 8 at 22-8546_0119-20). 
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40. On September 17, 2021, the agency representing Stylist 2 – The Wall Group – invoiced 

Condé Nast for $344.85.63  On September 21, 2021, Condé Nast advised The Wall Group 

that billing would be handled by Campaign Staffer, and copied Campaign Staffer on that 

email.64  On September 23, 2021, The Wall Group asked Campaign Staffer to provide a 

billing address for the invoice.65  It does not appear this was provided as the Wall Group 

attempted, unsuccessfully, to have Condé Nast pay for the bill in or around January 2022.66  

Condé Nast rejected that payment request on January 13, 2022, and provided the email 

address for Campaign Staffer as the appropriate billing point of contact.67 

41. Between January 13, 2022 and February 24, 2022, The Wall Group’s collections team made 

repeated attempts to secure payment from Campaign Staffer, noting on multiple occasions 

that the invoice was “EXTREMEMLY overdue.”68  Campaign Staffer initially attempted to 

pay the outstanding bill on February 24, 2022, two days after the OCE first contacted Rep. 

Ocasio-Cortez’s staff, but the payment was rejected.69  Campaign Staffer finally made 

payment for the service on March 16, 2022.70  

42. When interviewed, Campaign Staffer did not provide the OCE with a clear explanation on 

the basis for this delay in payment, aside from acknowledging that other things took 

precedence over The Wall Group’s payment requests.71    

c. Attire Provided by Brother Vellies  

43. On September 13, 2021, the day of the Met Gala, Aurora James and Brother Vellies provided 

Rep. Ocasio-Cortez with a custom dress, shoes, and handbag.72  They also provided her with 

jewelry.73  These items were all provided to Rep. Ocasio-Cortez as rentals and later returned 

to Brother Vellies.74   

44. Rep. Ocasio-Cortez and Campaign Staffer told the OCE that they were not involved in the 

rental valuations – that was left to the discretion of Ms. James.75  Ms. James and Brother 

Vellies declined to cooperate with this review, so the OCE could not address this issue with 

her or more specifically determine the manner in which rental valuations occurred.76 

 
63 Makeup Invoice for Condé Nast (Exhibit 19 at 22-8546_0297). 
64 Makeup Billing Emails 1 (Exhibit 20 at 22-8546_0299). 
65 Id. 
66 Makeup Billing Emails 2 (Exhibit 21 at 22-8546_0309). 
67 Id. 
68 Id. (Exhibit 21 at 22-8546_0302-09). 
69 Makeup Billing Emails 3 (Exhibit 22 at 22-8546_0313). 
70 Makeup Payment Confirmation (Exhibit 23 at 22-8546_0323). 
71 Campaign Staffer Transcript (Exhibit 8 at 22-8546_0169). 
72 Rep. Ocasio-Cortez Transcript (Exhibit 7 at 22-8546_0042-43).   
73 Mejuri, Inc. provided the jewelry to Brother Vellies, which in turn rented it to Rep. Ocasio-Cortez.      
74 Rep. Ocasio-Cortez Transcript (Exhibit 7 at 22-8546_0043, 0059-60).     
75 Id. (Exhibit 7 at 22-8546_0060-61); Campaign Staffer Transcript (Exhibit 8 at 22-8546_0110-12, 0128-29). 
76 The OCE gathered information about the retail costs of certain items Rep. Ocasio-Cortez wore in connection with 

the Met Gala.  See e.g., Brother Vellies Handbag Advertisement (Exhibit 24 at 22-8546_0326) (valuing a similar 

handbag at $995); Nordstrom Shoe Advertisement (Exhibit 25 at 22-8546_0328) (valuing similar shoes at $795); 
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45. On September 19, 2021, Janna Pea, a publicist associated with Brother Vellies, provided 

Campaign Staffer with a bill for $2,283.93 from Brother Vellies:77    

 

46. A day later, on September 20, 2021, another bill was provided to Campaign Staffer, this time 

totaling $990.76:78  

 

47. When asked about the billing revisions, Campaign Staffer acknowledged calling Ms. Pea to 

discuss the original bill.79  Campaign Staffer told the OCE that she understood that the shoes 

would be rentals, and not a purchase, so she “flagged that for [Pea].”80  She also told the 

OCE that she “want[ed] to confirm the gown rental price [was] correct.”81  According to 

Campaign Staffer, prior to the Met Gala, she had some general discussions regarding overall 

rental costs and was told a final bill would likely be around a thousand dollars.82  Because the 

original bill had an error regarding the shoe purchase and was higher than expected, 

Campaign Staffer asked Ms. Pea to confirm the overall bill was correct.83    

48. Campaign Staffer could not explain why the gown rental costs were reduced from $1,300 to 

$300.84  The OCE sought to interview Ms. Pea on these matters, but she declined to 

cooperate.                     

 
Mejuri Dome Ring Advertisement (Exhibit 26 at 22-8546_0330) (valuing the Dome Ring at $65); Mejuri Large 

Tube Hoops Advertisement (Exhibit 27 at 22-8546_0332) (valuing the Large Tube Hoops at $450).        
77 September 19, 2021 Brother Vellies Bill (Exhibit 28 at 22-8546_0334-35).   
78 September 20, 2021 Brother Vellies Bill (Exhibit 29 at 22-8546_0337-39).   
79 Campaign Staffer Transcript (Exhibit 8 at 22-8546_0139). 
80 Id. (Exhibit 8 at 22-8546_0140).   
81 Id. 
82 Id. (Exhibit 8 at 22-8546_0140). 
83 Id. (Exhibit 8 at 22-8546_0140-43). 
84 Id. (Exhibit 8 at 22-8546_0144-45). 
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49. As of March 2022, the $990.76 Brother Vellies bill remained unpaid.  When asked why this 

bill was not paid before the OCE opened its review, Campaign Staffer told the OCE that she 

did not think she had received a final invoice.85  She believed other items that Brother Vellies 

paid for would need to be added to the invoice, including costs for Rep. Ocasio-Cortez’s use 

of space at the Carlyle Hotel and transportation from the Carlyle Hotel to the Met Gala.86   

50. Campaign Staffer told the OCE that she identified these issues for Ms. Pea after receiving the 

second invoice, and at that point, she expected Ms. Pea to provide her with an updated 

invoice that addressed those outstanding items.87  When asked if she ever followed up on the 

invoice, Campaign Staffer acknowledged that she did not, and explained that payment 

“didn’t become a focus [again] until” the OCE opened this review.88 

51. When asked about the extent to which Rep. Ocasio-Cortez was aware that this payment was 

not made, Campaign Staffer told the OCE that Rep. Ocasio-Cortez knew that payments were 

not made since they had not been put on her credit card or withdrawn from her account; 

however, she indicated that she was not providing Rep. Ocasio-Cortez with regular status 

updates on the matter.89  Instead, she told Rep. Ocasio-Cortez that she was waiting to hear 

from Janna Pea regarding an updated invoice.90   

52. On March 3, 2021, two days after the OCE provided formal notice to Rep. Ocasio-Cortez of 

this review, Campaign Staffer emailed Janna Pea seeking “a confirmation of payment on the 

invoice from Brother Vellies.”91  In response to that email, Janna Pea explained that Brother 

Vellies never received payment.92  Campaign Staffer replied, noting “[w]e will have to take 

care of this ASAP.”93  On March 9, 2022, Campaign Staffer made a $990.77 payment to 

Brother Vellies.94   

d. Other Services Provided by Brother Vellies 

53. After the OCE opened this review, Rep. Ocasio-Cortez’s counsel contacted counsel for 

Aurora James and Brother Vellies and requested “an invoice and supporting documentation 

for any goods, services or amenities which Representative Alexandria Ocasio-Cortez and Mr. 

Riley Roberts may have received from [Brother Vellies or Aurora James] in connection with 

the September 13, 2021, Met Gala, for which Representative Ocasio-Cortez and Mr. Roberts 

may not have yet paid.”95  As set forth below, in an April 15, 2022 letter, counsel for Aurora 

James and Brother Vellies identified $5,579.99 worth of unpaid goods and services provided 

 
85 Id. (Exhibit 8 at 22-8546_0146-50). 
86 Id. (Exhibit 8 at 22-8546_0146-50, 0176).    
87 Id. (Exhibit 8 at 22-8546_0149-50). 
88 Id. (Exhibit 8 at 22-8546_0148-50). 
89 Id. (Exhibit 8 at 22-8546_0160-61). 
90 Id.  
91 March 2022 Emails Between Campaign Staffer and Janna Pea Regarding Payment for Brother Vellies Attire 

(Exhibit 30 at 22-8546_0341). 
92 Id.  
93 Id. 
94 Brother Vellies Proof of Payment 1 (Exhibit 31 at 22-8546_0345-47).  
95 April 15, 2022 Letter from Aurora James and Brother Vellies’ Counsel to Rep. Ocasio-Cortez Counsel (Exhibit 32 

at 22-8546_0349-50).  
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to Rep. Ocasio-Cortez and Riley Roberts, including transportation services to the Met Gala, 

room usage at the Carlyle Hotel, and shoes and a bowtie for Riley Roberts:96  

 

54. On May 10, 2022, a $5,579.99 payment was made to Brother Vellies.97   

e. Condé Nast Transportation  

55. During this review, Rep. Ocasio-Cortez’s team also identified unpaid transportation services, 

from Rep. Ocasio-Cortez’s home to the Carlyle Hotel on the morning of the Met Gala.98  

These services were provided by Condé Nast in connection with her participation in Vogue’s 

Met Gala video shoot.99  Rep. Ocasio-Cortez’s team determined that an appropriate payment 

for the transportation service was $180.00, and that amount was paid to Condé Nast on May 

10, 2022.100   

iii. Rep. Ocasio-Cortez’s Explanations for Her Failure to Pay   

56. When asked about the delays in payments for the variety of goods and services described 

above, Rep. Ocasio-Cortez acknowledged “there was a ball that was dropped” and described 

the situation as “deeply regrettable.”101   

 
96 Id.  The April 15, 2021 letter from Aurora James and Brother Vellies’ counsel suggests that Rep. Ocasio-Cortez 

used space at the Carlyle Hotel on September 12, 2021; however, that usage, for dress fitting purposes, actually 

occurred on Saturday, September 11, 2021.  See Campaign Staffer Transcript (Exhibit 8 at 22-8546_0178). 
97 Brother Vellies Proof of Payment 2 (Exhibit 33 at 22-8546_0367-68). 
98 Condé Nast Transportation Repayment Emails (Exhibit 34 at 22-8546_0371-75). 
99 Campaign Staffer Transcript (Exhibit 8 at 22-8546_0119-20). 
100 Condé Nast Transportation Payment Confirmation (Exhibit 35 at 22-8546_0377-80). 
101 Rep. Ocasio-Cortez Transcript (Exhibit 7 at 22-8546_0052, 0063).   
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57. Rep. Ocasio-Cortez recalled following-up with Campaign Staffer several times after the Met 

Gala about the need to pay for the services she was provided and being told that they were in 

a “holding pattern” since Brother Vellies needed to provide them with a revised and updated 

invoice.102  Rep. Ocasio-Cortez acknowledged she was not privy to the details about how 

payment was supposed to be structured and or when demands for payment were sent, and she 

relied on Campaign Staffer to address these matters.103  Rep. Ocasio-Cortez told the OCE 

that she only “learned about the extent of the nonpayment” on May 11, 2022, the day before 

her interview with the OCE.104       

58. Based on the foregoing information, the Board finds that there is substantial reason to believe 

that Rep. Ocasio-Cortez accepted impermissible gifts associated with her attendance at the 

Met Gala in 2021.     

III. CONCLUSION 

59. Based on the foregoing information, the Board finds that there is substantial reason to believe 

that Rep. Ocasio-Cortez accepted impermissible gifts associated with her attendance at the 

Met Gala. 

60. Accordingly, the Board recommends that the Committee further review the above allegation 

that Rep. Ocasio-Cortez accepted impermissible gifts associated with her attendance at the 

Met Gala. 

IV. INFORMATION THE OCE WAS UNABLE TO OBTAIN AND 

RECOMMENDATION FOR THE ISSUANCE OF SUBPOENAS 

61. The following witnesses, by declining to provide requested information to the OCE, did not 

cooperate with the OCE review: 

a. Aurora James;  

b. Brother Vellies; and  

c. Janna Pea. 

 

62. The Board recommends that the Committee on Ethics issue subpoenas to Aurora James, 

Brother Vellies, and Janna Pea.   

 
102 Id. (Exhibit 7 at 22-8546_0050-53).   
103 Id. (Exhibit 7 at 22-8546_0048-53, 0063).   
104 Id. (Exhibit 7 at 22-8546_0058, 0063).   
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                  P R O C E E D I N G S
          MR. BROWN:  For the record, this is Jeff
Brown with the Office of Congressional Ethics.
With me is my colleague Omar Ashmawy.  We are
undertaking a remote video interview of the
congresswoman.  It is May 12, 2022.  We are just a
couple minutes after 2:00 p.m.  The congresswoman
has been provided with a copy of 18 USC 1001,
signed an acknowledgement noting that it applies
to today's conversation, and with that we will get
started.
BY MR. BROWN TO THE CONGRESSWOMAN:
     Q    Thank you, Congresswoman, for being with
us today.
     A    Thank you for having me.
     Q    We will probably spend the majority of
our time talking about the 2021 Met Gala.  I'm
sure that's what you are anticipating we will be
talking about, but I did want to start by asking
you a couple of questions about invitations that
you received to prior Met Galas.
          So my understanding is you were invited
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to the 2019 Met Gala, couldn't attend for either
scheduling or some personal reasons so declined
that invitation but that you were invited to the
2020 Met Gala, and I would like you to walk me
through how that invitation came about.
     A    I think a lot of it was just an extension
of the fact that we couldn't attend the 2019 Met
Gala, so we were invited, we couldn't attend the
first time, and it -- you know, the invitation
stood for the next year and then the year after to
2021 when 2020 was canceled.
     Q    Tell me about that.  When you say the
invitation stood, what do you mean by that?
     A    I had spoken with a journalist at Vogue
at an event, I don't recall which one, and they
had communicated to me that the invitation still
stood and they had communicated that to me
verbally, and that's my interpretation.
     Q    Okay.  Do you remember who the journalist
was or when that conversation occurred?
     A    Well, there were several journalists who
had communicated it over a time period.  I
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remember one of them was Bridget Reed at Vogue,
but I don't remember if she was the one who had
communicated the 2021 or the 2019 one.  And these
were kind of like chance encounters at other
events.  So I don't remember specifically the
2021.  It could have been her, it could have been
someone else.
     Q    I realize it has been a little while so
let me show you a couple documents and see if
these jog your memory at all.  You are not on
these documents, but I would like you to see them
and then I will ask you a couple questions about
them.
          MR. BROWN:  Ian, if you could, could you
pull up Exhibits 1, 2 and 3 and give me control of
those.
          A/V TECHNICIAN:  Yes, counsel.  Please
stand by.
          MR. BROWN:  Thank you.
          (Exhibit 1, Exhibit 2 and Exhibit 3 were
marked.)
     Q    Congresswoman, let me direct your
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attention to this first exhibit up here.
          MR. BROWN:  Just let me, for the record,
say this is Exhibit 1, THAOC_0196.
     Q    I want to preface this with these couple
of e-mails I am having you read are February 8,
2020, communications with individuals who I
understand to be on your staff to folks at Condé
Nast or Vogue.  I'm going to let you read these.
Let me know when you are done with each one and I
will move you on to the next one.
     A    Uh-huh.  Okay.
     Q    Moving onto Exhibit 2, and I will blow
this up for you a little bit here.
          MR. BROWN:  For the record, this is
Exhibit 2, THAOC_0184.
     Q    Congresswoman, I just want to direct your
attention to the February 8 e-mails right here, if
you want to read those.  You are more than welcome
to read the rest of the e-mail string, too, if you
would like, but I'm just going to focus on the
February 8 communications.
     A    Okay.

Transcript of Interview of Congresswoman 
Conducted on May 12, 2022 8

PLANET DEPOS
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM

22-8546_0030



1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

     Q    And now this is Exhibit 3.  I will zoom
in for you a little bit here.
          MR. BROWN:  For the record, this is
THAOC_0182.
     A    Again, I'm just going to scroll down to
the February 8 communications right here.
Congresswoman, if you want to read those and let
me know when you're done.
     A    Yes, that's correct.
     Q    Okay.  These are all, like I said,
e-mails from February 8, it looks like the
afternoon, February 8, 2020, from, as I understand
it, individuals on your staff to individuals at
Vogue.  Does this help jog your memory at all
about how the invitation to the 2020 Gala came
about?
     A    Yes.  It says here at the last e-mail
that the event was the Little Women premier.  And
I do remember after the premier two journalists or
employees affiliated with Vogue had approached me
about attending the Met.
     Q    And tell me, what did they say?  What are
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your recollections of what you discussed?
     A    I mean I remember it was something
loosely along the lines of, you know, we know you
couldn't make it last year, we would still love to
have you, please reach out, you know, to our team
because we would love to still have you come.
     Q    My understanding is the Little Women
premier occurred somewhere around like December of
2019.  Does that sound about right?
     A    I think that sounds about right.  I
remember it was cold outside.
     Q    And I see these e-mails are from February
8 of 2020.  So talk to me about how these e-mails
come about.  It looks like you have a sitdown with
some staff members and direct them to reach out to
Condé Nast.  Is that how it happened?
     A    I remember right after the event I had
passed along the communication from Vogue, what
they had told me at the event, to my staff and I
had asked them to follow up.  And, you know, this
may have been in response to sometime later I may
have asked them did you follow up after that
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initial conversation, perhaps they just followed
up a little late, but that's what I imagine, yeah.
     Q    So when you were talking about following
up after this event, you mean following up after
the Little Women premier?
     A    Yes, yeah.
     Q    So your recollection is asking someone on
staff to follow up on it sometime in December and
then these e-mails may be in response to you
following up with your staff to see sort of where
things stood?
     A    Yeah, because -- so basically our
office -- if it happened around December 2020, our
office and most of Capitol Hill is closed for a
decent amount of time during the holidays.  So if
it happened during December, it could have
happened like right before Christmas and New
Year's, which leaves the office closed for several
weeks.  And so, you know, right after in January
everything opens up.  I imagine this wasn't the
most urgent thing that we were dealing with and so
this was probably one of those tasks that had been
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pushed a few weeks and so it kind of makes sense
that they had followed up in February because we
probably had a lot of other top priorities to
contend with in January.
     Q    Do you recall sitting down or having a
phone call with Campaign Staffer or Corbin about
the Met in or around February?
     A    I don't.  I mean, I have had so many
phone calls with them.  But I don't recall.  It is
entirely possible, but I just don't recall.
     Q    It does seem to me -- and I just want to
make sure I am not misinterpreting this.  It looks
like there were probably some communications
between you and staff on February 8 that would
have led to these communications.
     A    Well, again, it is entirely possible.  We
do weekly -- we do weekly -- I do check-ins with
my directors and my campaign manager once a week.
So that gives us after the holiday season, after
the office reopens, that puts like maybe four
meetings between -- or four check-ins between the
reopening of the office and around the time of
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this e-mail.  So I could see us just -- you know,
it very well could have come up on a check-in
where I asked like have we done this, did we
follow up with those folks, and they -- that could
have been what prompted this.
     Q    Does the name Vogue Entertainment
Director mean anything to you?
     A    No.  (Name) means something to me because
that's my father's name.
     Q    I don't think that's who I'm referring to
here.
          Let me direct your attention then back to
Exhibit 2 here.  And I will scroll up and give you
a chance to read this.  Was staff keeping you up
to date on their correspondence with the Met?  And
in particular I would just like to draw your
attention to this February 11 e-mail.  You are not
on it, but it is an e-mail from Condé Nast to
Corbin Trent and it looks like it occurs on
February 11.  I will let you read these e-mails.
          And my question really is:  To what
extent is staff keeping you apprised of their
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communications with Condé Nast?
     A    I mean they really weren't.  It was one
of those things that I remember it was just like a
yes/no item.  I didn't really get any details
about this at all.  It was just I really just
remember kind of it being like -- I remember
asking about it at some point.  I imagine that was
probably around this time.  And then hearing a
decent amount of time later saying like yeah,
you've been -- they've -- you have been invited.
And so I wasn't really apprised of any of it
extensive back and forth.  I mean, honestly, I had
the impression that it was a pretty simple
exchange, but I'll read the e-mail.  I apologize.
     Q    No, go ahead.  Take your time.
     A    Okay.
     Q    I will scroll up there for you so you can
see the last part of it.
          As you mentioned, at some point it is
confirmed, you see here in this Friday, February
21, e-mail from Met Gala Organizer, "We are
delighted to confirm Ms. Ocasio-Cortez as a guest
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of this year's Met Gala."
          At some point your partner, Riley
Roberts, gets invited as well.  How does that come
about?
     A    I remember asking if he was invited as
well, if it was like a plus-one.
     Q    You didn't ask anybody at Condé Nast,
though; you probably would have asked that of
Campaign Staffer, who would have asked that of
Condé Nast?
     A    Yes.
          MR. BROWN:  Ian, you can take down these
exhibits for me.
     Q    Congresswoman, I'm going to shift gears
to the 2021 Met Gala.  Probably a little easier to
remember stuff associated with this one.  That's
the last Met Gala you went to.  You didn't go a
couple weeks ago, did you?
     A    No.
     Q    So my understanding from the documents
that your counsel provided to us is that you get
invited somewhere around May 13 and at some point
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thereafter you and your team decide to hire
counsel, Dave Mitrani.  I would just like to know
when do you hire Dave and why do you hire Dave in
connection with the Gala?
     A    Well, I mean when I have -- I've worked
with Mr. Mitrani a very long period of time.  He's
generally our general counsel for the campaign.
You know, one of the reasons I asked him is
because I had a conversation with Campaign Staffer
and I really wanted to make sure that we were in
compliance with ethics rules.  It is a very
visible event.  It is one that features a very
prominent cultural institution in New York City
and I just really wanted to make sure that we had
all of our Is dotted and Ts crossed and so I
wanted to make sure that we conducted all the
steps of this in compliance with ethics rules.
          And given all of the technicalities and
logistics involved in the event, you know, I -- it
was just the responsible thing to do to bring in
counsel to make sure we could very easily vet this
event.  This is also a pretty routine practice for
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myself and the team.  Just, I mean, due to the
visibility of my office, I try to steward the
responsibility as best as I can.
     Q    Okay.  That certainly makes sense from
the documents that we saw and I just -- without --
I'm not going to ask you the advice that Dave
provided to you in your campaign, but I do want to
get a sense for Dave and Sandler Reiff were hired
to address some of the compliance-related concerns
that you had in anticipation of the Gala and I'm
assuming that meant things like can you attend in
the first instance, you know, and how are you
going to pay for these services associated with
the Gala.  Is that fair?
     A    Yes.  I mean everything under the sun.  I
mean it is really not just about can I attend.  I
mean, if I can be candid, you know, I can't have a
hair out of place without somebody noticing, and
so the instruction to my counsel is, you know,
literally anything, any conceivable situation,
anything at all, to just vet as many details as
possible.
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     Q    And who is Dave's primary point of
contact on these sort of things connected to the
Gala?  Are you and Dave having these conversations
or is it --
     A    No; it is Campaign Staffer, Campaign
Staffer and Dave.
     Q    So aside from Campaign Staffer and Dave,
in terms of staff who are involved with the Gala,
it looked to me maybe one of the key people in
this is Lauren, your comms director, and she
handles comms-related stuff for the Gala?
     A    Correct.  The day of the event we also
had a campaign photographer on staff by the name
of Corey Torpey, and she was present the day of.
     Q    Just walk me through pre-Gala and as you
and your team are thinking about attending this
event and paying for the things, services that are
going to be provided to you along with this event,
are you guys thinking of this as is this a
campaign event, is this a personal event, is this
an official event?  What's the thought process
there?
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     A    Well, in terms of compliance, you know,
the resources, the payment is personal.  I pay for
the event.  It is handled outside without any
official capacity staff present.  So costs of the
event are personal.  And facilitation is -- you
know, official staff and government resources are
explicitly prohibited from facilitating details.
          MR. BROWN:  Dave, did you want to jump
in?
          MR. MITRANI:  Jeff, I want to just say,
as we stated in our response, this was generally
thought of as an officially connected event that a
campaign could assist upon.
     A    Yes.  And there are several examples of
this within House rules.  For example, campaign
travel.  In terms of travel to officially
connected events, unofficial staff, and in some
instances campaign resources are allowed to pay
for travel to officially connected events.  So the
event itself was officially connected, but the
conduct of execution and the costs of attending
were personal and unofficial.
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     Q    Yeah, okay.  I wasn't trying to ask a
tricky question there.  I just realize, as
Campaign Staffer said, yes, this is a bit of a
non-traditional event so I was trying to get a
sense of how you and the team were thinking about
it in advance.  So I appreciate that.  But that is
helpful to understand.
          So the thought process going into the
event is the cost of this you will be paying for,
you would be bearing personally, and that campaign
staff would be assisting with the staffing of it
for lack of a better word.
     A    Uh-huh.
     Q    Okay.  What I would like to do now is
just walk through and sort of tick off the
services that you received in connection with the
Gala and make sure I and we have a full and
complete understanding of what was provided to
you.  And then after we get that straightened out,
we can kind of go back and talk about how
everything was paid for.  Okay?
     A    Uh-huh.
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     Q    So my understanding is that the morning
of the Gala you received some sort of
transportation that Condé Nast paid for originally
from your home to the Carlyle Hotel and that would
have been in connection with this Vogue video that
you guys were partaking in?
     A    Correct.
     Q    You also received a manicure and a
pedicure while at the Carlyle in anticipation of
the event?
     A    Correct.
     Q    Your hair was done by Stylist 1?
     A    Yes, correct.
     Q    And makeup by Cassandra Garcia?
     A    Correct.
     Q    And then I know Brother Vellies and
Aurora James, I might use those terms
interchangeably, provided you with the dress, the
shoes, the bag, and the jewelry; right?
     A    I rented from them, yes.
     Q    And then Brother Vellies or Aurora James
also provided you space to both do a fitting on
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Saturday at the Carlyle and space to get ready at
the Carlyle on the day of the Gala?
     A    Correct.
     Q    Okay.  And then Brother Vellies also
provided transportation from the Carlyle to the
event?
     A    Correct.
     Q    And Brother Vellies also provided
Mr. Roberts with shoes and a bow tie?
     A    Correct.
     Q    I understand from some of the documents
that Mr. Roberts also had purchased a tux from
Suitsupply, had some tailoring done at Suitsupply,
and it sounds like Aurora James had coordinated
him getting some additional tailoring services
with a friend or colleague of hers.  Is that
accurate?
     A    It never happened, but she extended that
offer, yes.
     Q    Okay.  So Mr. Roberts, he never had
tailoring services done by anybody besides
Suitsupply?
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     A    No.
     Q    Thank you.  That clarifies that.
          That, as I understand it, is sort of the
list of things that were connected to the Met
Gala, services that were provided to you, but am I
missing anything?
     A    I think that's -- I think that's
everything.  There was so much going on that day,
but, you know, someone brought pastries to the
room.  I didn't eat one, but they were brought.
     Q    We don't have to delve into the pastries.
     A    Okay.
     Q    Any other more substantive services?  I
think your counsel has provided us with some
details about this.  I think that covers it, but I
just want to ask in case anything else comes to
your mind.
     A    No, nothing that I recall, no.
     Q    Let's shift gears and talk a little bit
about payment for services.
          You said previously your understanding
prior to the Gala is that you were going to have
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to pay for these services personally out of your
own funds?
     A    Yes.
     Q    I take it after the Gala that same
understanding applied?
     A    Yes.
     Q    Okay.  And were you aware that the House
Ethics Committee, so not this office but the House
Ethics Committees, reached out to your office the
day after the Gala about the Gala?
     A    Yes.
     Q    And were you aware that your counsel had
communications with counsel over at the Ethics
Committee?
     A    I am aware there was communication, but I
don't really know what the detail of the
communication was.
     Q    Were you aware that they were
communicating the day of -- sorry; let me rephrase
that.
          MR. BROWN:  Dave, I will let you jump in
first.
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          MR. MITRANI:  The extent of our
conversation with Tom Rust was that e-mail that
they had sent and we thanked them for reaching
out.  I don't believe there was significant
substance to that.
          MR. BROWN:  Yeah.  No, I just wanted to
know if the congresswoman --
     Q    Were you aware that the committee reached
out and that your counsel had communications with
counsel over at the committee?
     A    I knew that it had occurred, yes.
     Q    And did you know that it occurred in or
around that time or did you learn that it occurred
as a part of this OCE review process?
     A    I think I -- I believe it was around that
time.
     Q    Okay.  I just wanted to verify because
your counsel says in that e-mail to the Ethics
Committee, "The congresswoman will be paying for
all of these things personally."  I just wanted to
make sure you were aware that that was being
conveyed at the time to the committee.
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                  P R O C E E D I N G S
          MR. BROWN:  This is Jeff Brown with the
Office of Congressional Ethics.  With me is my
colleague Omar Ashmawy.  Today we are undertaking
a remote video interview of Campaign Staffer.  It
is May 11, 2022.  It is shortly after 10:00 a.m.
Campaign Staffer has been given a copy of the
False Statements Act and signed an acknowledgment
in advance of this interview.  With that we will
get started.
BY MR. BROWN TO CAMPAIGN STAFFER:
     Q    Thank you again for being here today and
answering some questions for us.  I'm going to
start hopefully with some of the easiest questions
you will get all day.
          What is your current title and roles and
responsibilities with the congresswoman.
     A    My current title is campaign manager for
Alexandria Ocasio-Cortez for Congress.  The main
duty tied to that is to manage her campaign
operation, which the congresswoman operates
year-round, and so our focus shifts depending on
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whether we are in the electoral cycle versus not.
So obviously during the electoral year the goal is
to and my duties are focused on reelecting -- her
reelection campaign.
          In the off year, if there is such a thing
as an off year, we focus on supplementing some of
the organizing work in the district and we will
handle things that don't fall under her like
federal hat but are appropriate for a campaign to
manage.
     Q    So currently the campaign manager.  Have
you had any prior titles or prior roles and
responsibilities with the congresswoman?
     A    In her first campaign in 2018 I operated
as a fundraising director and then during 2019 is
when I shifted over to campaign manager.  So that
was the only other previous title I have had.
     Q    So since 2019 you have been campaign
manager for the campaign?
     A    Correct.
     Q    Okay.  Do you do any work on the official
side of things?
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     A    I do not.
     Q    We will get into this in some more
detail, but with respect to the Met Gala, can you
describe for me what your role and
responsibilities were with respect to the
congresswoman's participation in or attendance at
the Met Gala?
     A    Like with events that the congresswoman
may do, there are things that if she gets an
invitation to something, we will decide where it
might fit best.  And given that this was sort of
new for all of us, it seemed like a good fit to
operate on the campaign side.  And what's typical
for us with events, is that we will connect with
the host, figure out what her participation would
be, try and understand the focus of the event, the
parameters around it, whatever information would
be helpful to us in aligning with a goal to an
event, and also understanding what her role would
be there.
          So there is a good amount of
back-and-forth conversation that we have when we
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are working with the congresswoman to participate
in an event and of course her input as well.  And
so we put that together, we package it, try to
make sure we understand it as a team.  And that's
primarily done on the staff side.  And then we
will staff her for the events themselves.
     Q    Okay.  All right.  We can get into that
in a little more detail as we go through this
interview.
          MR. BROWN:  Let me ask, Joshua, can you
pull up Exhibit 1 for me.
          (Exhibit 1 was marked.)
     Q    I will just note we are going to start
with the 2020 Met Gala.
     A    Okay.
     Q    Which I know did not occur, but we are
going to start there.
     A    Okay.
          A/V TECHNICIAN:  Mr. Brown, just click
your screen and you will have control.
          MR. BROWN:  Thank you very much.
     Q    So I'm going to give you a chance to
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review this e-mail, and just let me know after you
have had a chance to look at it.
     A    I have looked at it, thank you.
     Q    Okay.
          MR. BROWN:  Just for the record, this is
an e-mail, Exhibit 1.  The Bates is THAOC_0196.
     Q    Can you tell me what prompted you to send
this e-mail?
     A    Yes.  So this was I heard from a staffer
that the congresswoman was at an event that I was
not participating in, was not sort of the -- the
campaign did not run her participation in this
event, where it was brought up to her that there
was interest in having her be a guest at the Met
Gala.  And so this seemed to be something that
would fall under the campaign side to do.  So I
was given the e-mail that you see there and was
told to reach out so we could find out more, and
that's what prompted that.
     Q    And who asked you to reach out?
     A    This was done through our comms director
at the time, Corbin Trent.
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     Q    And when you said earlier that you had
heard from a staffer --
     A    It was Corbin, our comms director.
     Q    Corbin Trent, okay.  Tell me more.  What
did Corbin say to you?
     A    He said she went to an event and she
spoke to someone there who said -- who mentioned
the Met Gala to her and that there would be
interest in having her participate as a guest, I
think gauging to see if that would be something
she would be interested in.  And he -- I don't
know if he spoke to her directly, but what was
communicated to me was that she would be
interested, and so this was my follow-up.
     Q    And that was communicated to you, her
interest in attending the event was communicated
to you, through Corbin?
     A    Correct.
     Q    Okay.  Did you ever have any
conversations with the congresswoman about the
2020 Met Gala?
     A    We did talk about it.  I did let her know
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that I sent the e-mail just kind of sort of
handing it over for me to manage and that I would
keep her updated with whatever we found out.
     Q    In this e-mail when you say "she has
expressed an interest in participating in the Met
Gala," that interest that she expressed was
expressed to you by Corbin?
     A    Correct.
     Q    Okay.  Did you get any reply to this
e-mail, either a phone call or a reply e-mail?
     A    I believe I did get a reply.  I don't
recall exactly when and I don't remember how the
reply came.  It could -- I believe they probably
reached out to my phone number through text.
     Q    Okay.  And you think those texts were
with Ms. Amatya?  I'm probably messing that last
name up, but the individual that is on this
e-mail?
     A    Yes.  That was my -- she was my first
contact.
     Q    Okay.
          MR. BROWN:  You can take Exhibit 1 down
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and put up Exhibit 2.
          (Exhibit 2 was marked.)
     Q    This is another e-mail here, which I'm
going to start here at the beginning.  And let me
zoom in a little for you.  I would like to just
start by asking you some questions about the first
e-mail down here that is Saturday, February 8,
4:02 p.m.  So I will give you a chance to read
that, but, just for the record, the Bates is
THAOC_0183.
          Just let me know when you have had a
chance to look at that.
     A    Yes, the e-mail that says on Saturday,
February 8, 2020?
     Q    Right.
     A    Yes, yes.
     Q    Who is Tommy Alter?
     A    Tommy is someone who works in
entertainment.  I don't know his exact role, but
he has been a contact for us for some time now and
he -- because he has a connection to us, when he
hears stuff around the congresswoman, he will
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routinely reach out either through e-mail or text.
     Q    What prompts this e-mail by Tommy?
     A    I don't know what prompts it.  I can tell
you he probably heard it in conversation somewhere
and thought to reach out to facilitate.
     Q    Did you reach out to Tommy at any point
in time to prompt this e-mail?
     A    I did not.
     Q    How about -- am I saying this right,
Tanushiri?
     A    Tanushiri.
     Q    Tanushiri.
     A    That was pretty good.
          No.
     Q    No, okay.  Let's move up to the second
e-mail in this string, so just above.  You respond
and say "Thank you Tommy!  Moving you to bcc.
Nice to meet you, Jill and Remi!  Alexandra is
interested in participating in this years' Met
Gala.  I know there is a process around designers,
so we're hoping it is not too late.  We are
looking to find out how to proceed."
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          When you say the congresswoman is
interested in participating in this year's Met
Gala, where do you get that information from?
     A    I was going off of what I had heard from
the team, that she was interested.
     Q    And this is what we talked about earlier,
Corbin Trent had conveyed to you that the
congresswoman was interested in attending the
gala?
     A    Correct.
          MR. BROWN:  Joshua, if you could give the
campaign staffer control.
          A/V TECHNICIAN:  Just click your screen
and you will have control.
     Q    I'm going to let you scroll back up
through that e-mail and take your time reading it.
I'm going to ask you a question about some e-mails
on the next page, but I will let you get through
the string first.
     A    Okay.
          Okay, ready.
          MR. BROWN:  Joshua, can you give me
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control again.
          A/V TECHNICIAN:  One moment.
     Q    So let me just take you through this real
quick.  It looks to me like that last e-mail we
went over, you dropped Tommy into the bcc, you
expressed the congresswoman's interest in
attending, and then you get an e-mail back from a
Remi Berger at Condé Nast who says we are going to
loop you in with Jessie and Jenae.
          You respond on February 11, "Thank you
all!  Looking forward to connecting."  On the 17th
you say "Hi all, just checking in here."  What
prompts this e-mail?  Is it just a lack of
response from the folks you were looped in with?
     A    It was a lack of response and I think I
indicated in connection with them, since I wasn't
familiar with the timelines that they would need
or were involved, I wanted to make sure that we
were kind of on it.  So yeah, it was just a lack
of response.
     Q    Okay.  And then this last e-mail here, it
looks like Met Gala Organizer finally responds to

Transcript of Interview of Campaign Staffer
Conducted on May 11, 2022 17

PLANET DEPOS
888.433.3767 | WWW.PLANETDEPOS.COM

22-8546_0078



1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

you  and says, you know, "We typically sell out in
November so we are in a difficult spot in terms of
space right now, but we would be happy to discuss
with Anna Wintour..."
          You mentioned earlier that you were
keeping the congresswoman updated.  Is this
something that you conveyed to the congresswoman?
     A    Yes, I did.
     Q    And what was her reaction when you
conveyed that?
     A    She said okay.
     Q    Okay.  Did you guys have any substantive
discussion about it?
     A    No.  The reason why we didn't have a
substantive discussion about it is because
there -- I don't think there was much to talk
about.  If it was possible for us to go, then I
think we would kick up more conversation, but it
didn't seem guaranteed at that time, so I just
shared with her an update.
          MR. BROWN:  Joshua, if you can take down
Exhibit 2 and please put up Exhibit 3.
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          (Exhibit 3 was marked.)
     Q    Exhibit 3 is another e-mail that starts
on February 8.  You are not on the initial part of
the string, you are on the later part of the
string.  Before we get to the e-mail, let me just
ask you a couple quick questions.
          You mentioned previously Corbin Trent was
a part of the campaign at the time and I think you
said he was involved with comms.  Is that right?
     A    Correct.  He had a campaign and
congressional role.
     Q    Can you tell me more about what his roles
were, both campaign and official?
     A    He operated as the communications
director on the congressional side and had a
similar role on the campaign side.  And so I think
where things were best handled under the campaign
side, he would move it over to there, and just to
kind of create that separation.
     Q    And with respect to the Met Gala, the
2021 Met Gala, can you give me a better
understanding for what his role would have been
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regarding the Gala?
     A    His role would have been -- I think he
would have just participated with me in helping us
shape the event, to know the event, understand the
press parameters around it, since that was his
expertise within the team, and I would probably
handle things more like logistics and coordinating
with the different parties that we would be in
touch with.
     Q    You mentioned earlier that Corbin was the
one that told you the congresswoman had expressed
an interest in attending the Met Gala.  I would
note that the previous e-mails we looked at were
all from February 8, the afternoon of February 8.
They started there; excuse me.
          This e-mail here at the bottom if you
look at it -- and let me zoom in on it.  I will
give you a chance to read it -- is another e-mail
on February 8 from Corbin Trent to somebody at
Condé Nast.  I will give you a chance to read that
and let me know when you have finished.
     A    I have read the e-mails on February 8.
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     Q    Okay.  Do you know what prompted Corbin
to send this e-mail?
     A    No.
     Q    Okay.  Would it be safe to assume that
this e-mail was likely prompted by the interest
that the congresswoman had expressed to Corbin
about attending the Gala?
     A    Potentially.
     Q    It looks to me like -- and, again, I
realize you weren't the one having the
conversation with the congresswoman, but I'm just
trying to get a sense of things here.  It looks to
me like on February 8 the congresswoman had a
conversation with someone on staff, and it sounds
like that is Corbin Trent, about the Met Gala and
then these e-mails emanated from that
conversation.
     A    Yeah.  It looks like someone had
approached her, like Tommy had indicated, at the
Little Women premier, and that is kind of where
this started.  And she might have expressed an
interest in following up with the team to Corbin
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and he looped me in.
     Q    Okay.
          MR. BROWN:  Joshua, let's give her
control here and let her review this screen.
     Q    And let me know when you are done and I
will have some questions about the last e-mail in
the string.
     A    Okay, read it.
     Q    Okay.  Thank you.
          With respect to the last e-mail here, so
I'm looking at the top e-mail in this string, it
is sent on Friday, February 21, 2020, at 2:15 p.m.
It looks like it is from Met Gala Organizer to
you.  She says "Of course-just rang you on my
cell."  And that is in response to a series of
e-mails here just below where she indicates that
we are delighted to confirm the congresswoman can
be a guest for this year's Met Gala.  Corbin loops
you in and says you would be the one to be in
touch with.
          You say "I have a few questions.  Can we
connect via phone?"  And it looks like she rang
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you.  Did you guys have a conversation?
     A    Yes, we did.
     Q    What did you guys talk about?
     A    I wanted to learn more about the Met Gala
itself.  You know, I think like most of us have
heard of it but wanted to sort of wrap my head
around the theme for it, wanted to get her to kind
of frame it for me, what does participation look
like.  So it was kind of a broad conversation but
it was more just to help me start to understand
what this is.
     Q    Okay.
          MR. BROWN:  Joshua, if you can go to
Exhibit 4, please.
          (Exhibit 4 was marked.)
          MR. BROWN:  If you can give her control
of this, that would be great.
     Q    I will give you a chance to scroll
through and look at this, but just let me know
when you've finished.
     A    Finished, thank you.
     Q    For the record, this is THAOC 0190.  This
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is an e-mail from Met Gala Organizer to you on
Saturday, the 22nd of February, 2020.  It says
"Pleasure speaking with you.  Please find a press
release attached.  Will be in touch soon on the
other points."
          It does look like from this e-mail
consistent with what you just told me, you were
having conversation about the Gala generally and I
assume that is why she sent you the press release
announcing the Gala?
     A    Correct.  And in there is like the theme
of it.
     Q    She mentioned some other issues that you
wanted to discuss.  Can you walk me through what
those were?
     A    Yes.  The other points I think because --
so a lot of -- and I think this still goes along
with sort of framing and trying to understand what
this participation in the Met Gala looked like.
          So one piece here which you see has to do
with the theme of the event.  I did ask how does
it work in terms of working with designers and
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just in my understanding that the Met Gala, aside
from its theme and its presentation, is a way for
designers to like spotlight and feature their
work.  And that's completely absent from our world
and so I was asking Met Gala Organizer how do they
help their guests who aren't in entertainment and
fashion, how do they work with supporting them to
get ready for it or at least to understand what
would be included in that.  And those were the
other points that she was referencing.
     Q    Did you guys also have a conversation
about Riley Roberts attending?
     A    At the time, no, I don't think -- I don't
think Riley was -- at least not a core part of the
conversation.  I think I was still kind of trying
to set my footing on the framing of it first.
     Q    Did you guys ever have a conversation
about whether or not -- you got the e-mail the
congresswoman is invited.  Did you ever have a
conversation of whether she gets a plus-one or she
can bring somebody?
     A    I think at some point there was -- I
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Dave Mitrani
April 15, 2022
Page 2

bow ties were purchased, but Mr. Roberts chose to only wear and keep the bow tie listed for 
$270. We accounted for this price in the above calculations. If you believe that our 
understanding or calculations in this matter are incorrect, please let us know.

We understand and seek to assist Representative Ocasio-Cortez in her desire to comply with the 
laws, rules and regulations that apply to her as a Member of Congress. Toward that end, our 
clients are prepared to accept payment from her in the total amount indicated above, which you 
may provide directly to us. We reserve all rights, including the right to modify the requested 
payment if further review of our clients’ records warrants any such modification.

Please do not hesitate to contact us directly if you have any questions about these matters. 

Very truly yours,

Brian G. Svoboda
Danielle Sivalingam
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